
December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 1 

STUDY SESSION 

Location: City Hall 
834 Main Street 
Ferndale CA 95536 

Date: December 1,  2011 

 Time: 6:30 pm 

 Posted: 11/23/11  
 

1. CALL STUDY SESSION TO ORDER – Mayor 
a. Wastewater Treatment Plant Update on Change Order number 

thirteen.                                                    
2. ADJOURN STUDY SESSION 

 
 

AGENDA 
CITY OF FERNDALE – HUMBOLDT COUNTY CALIFORNIA – U.S.A. 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Location: City Hall 
834 Main Street 
Ferndale CA 95536 

Date: December 1, 2011 

 Time: 7 pm 

 Posted:11/23/11  
 
We welcome you to the meeting. Members of the Public may be heard on any business item on this Agenda before or 

during the City Council consideration of the item. The public may also directly address the City Council on any item of interest 
to the public that is not on the Agenda during the public comment time; however, the City Council generally cannot take action 
on an item not on the agenda. 

A person addressing the City Council will be limited to five (5) minutes unless the Mayor of the City Council grants a 
longer period of time. While not required, we would appreciate it if you would identify yourself with your name and address 
when addressing the Council. 

This City endeavors to be ADA compliant. Should you require assistance with written information or access to the 
facility, or a hearing amplification, please call 786-4224 24 hours prior to the meeting. 

TO SPEAK ON ANY ISSUE, BE ACKNOWLEDGED BY THE MAYOR BEFORE PROCEEDING TO THE PODIUM, STATE YOUR 
NAME AND ADDRESS FOR THE RECORD (optional), AND DIRECT YOUR COMMENTS ONLY TO THE COUNCIL. 

 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER – Mayor 
2. PLEDGE ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG 
3. ROLL CALL – Deputy City Clerk 
4. CEREMONIAL:  None 
5. MODIFICATIONS TO THE AGENDA 
6. STUDY SESSIONS   
7. PUBLIC COMMENT. (This time is for persons who wish to address the Council on 

any matter not on this agenda and over which the Council has jurisdiction. Items 
requiring Council action not listed on this agenda will be placed on the next 
regular agenda for consideration, unless a finding is made by at least 2/3rds of 
the Council that the item came up after the agenda was posted and is of an 
urgent nature requiring immediate action. This portion of the meeting will be 
approximately 30 minutes total for all speakers, with each speaker given no 
more than five minutes.) ................................................................................................  Page  4 

8. CONSENT CALENDAR. (All matters listed under this category are considered to 
be routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one motion. Unless a 
specific request is made by a Councilmember, staff or the public, the Consent 
Calendar will not be read. There will be no separate discussion of these items. 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 2 

However, if discussion is required, that item will be removed from the Consent 
Calendar and considered separately under “Call Items.”) 

a. Acceptance of Accounts Payable .......................................................................  Page 5 
b. Approval of previous minutes:  

i. November 3, 2011 ................................................................................  Page 19 
9. CALL ITEMS 
10. PRESENTATION / Community Forum ..............................................................................  None  
11. BUSINESS 

a. Wind Turbine ......................................................................................................  Page 21 
b. PUBLIC HEARING: Draft Housing Element Update ............................................  Page 59 
c. PUBLIC HEARING: Draft Historical & Cultural Resources Element .....................   Page 145 
d. PUBLIC HEARING: Residential Two-Family (R2) Density General Plan and 

Zoning Amendment and Ferndale Housing Combing Zone Overlay Zoning 
Amendment .......................................................................................................  Page 181 

e. PUBLIC HEARING: Initial Study and Negative Declaration for the 
Ferndale Housing Element, Historical & Cultural Resources Element and 
General Plan/ Zoning Amendments ...................................................................  Page 186 

f. Resolution 2011-46 for 16th Progress Pay Request for Management and 
Construction Related Costs for the WWTP ........................................................  Page 241 

g. Change Order #13 ..............................................................................................  Page 245 
h. Change the Design Review Zoning Ordinance from 3 votes to a majority 

vote(2nd Reading) ...............................................................................................  Page 246 
i. TTS monitoring station .......................................................................................  Page 248 
j. Letter of support  to CUPC regarding the Scotia Power Plant ...........................  Page 249 

12. CORRESPONDENCE  ........................................................................................................  Page 252 
13. REPORTS 

a. City Manager Staff Report and Community Events ...........................................  Page 253 
b. Commissions / Committees and others 

i. Design Review .......................................................................................  Page 265 
ii. Planning Commission ............................................................................  Page 266 

iii. Sign Committee .....................................................................................  Page 267 
c. Council Reports and Comments ........................................................................  Page 268 

i. HWMA Abstract 
14. ADJOURN ........................................................................................................................  Page 269 

This notice is posted in compliance with Government Code §54954.2. 
The next Regular Meeting of the Ferndale City Council will be held on 
THURSDAY, January 5, 2011 in the Auditorium of City Hall at 7:00pm 

  



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 3 

Section 1 

Call Meeting to Order 
 

Section 2 
Pledge Allegiance 

 
Section 3 
Roll Call 

 
Section 4 

Ceremonial 
 

 

 

 

  



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 4 

 

Section 5 

Modifications to the Agenda 
 

Section 6 
Study Sessions 

 

Section 7 

Public Comment 
 

This time is for persons who wish to address the Council on any matter not on this agenda and 
over which the Council has jurisdiction. 
 
Items requiring Council action not listed on this agenda will be placed on the next regular 
agenda for consideration, unless a finding is made by at least 2/3rd of the Council (three of the 
five members) that the item came up after the agenda was posted and is of an urgent nature 
requiring immediate action. 
 
This portion of the meeting will be approximately 30 minutes total for all speakers, with each 
speaker given no more than five minutes. Please state your name and address for the record. 
(This is optional.) 

 

Section 8 

Consent Agenda 
 
All matters listed under this category are considered to be routine by the City Council and will 
be enacted by one motion.  
 
Is there anyone on the Council, Staff or the public that would like to pull an item off the 
Consent Agenda for scrutiny? Those items will be considered separately under “Call Items.” 
  



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 5 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 6 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 7 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 8 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 9 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 10 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 11 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 12 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 13 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 14 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 15 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 16 

 
  



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 17 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 18 

 
  



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 19 

City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA 
       City Council Minutes for the November 3, 2011 Meeting 7:00 p.m.  

 
 
Mayor Jeffrey Farley called the Regular City Council Meeting to order at 7:08 p.m. Present were 
Councilmen Niels Lourenzen, Ken Mierzwa, and John Maxwell, Stuart Titus as well as City Manager Jay 
Parrish,  Deputy City Clerk Brianna Smith, City Engineer Praj White, Project Manager Kent Hanford and 
Navy Housing Consultant Elizabeth Connor. Those present pledged allegiance to the flag.  

Ceremonial:  The City Manager read the Great American Smoke out Proclamation. Mayor Farley 
presented it to Stan Mikkelson , who gave a brief speech. 

Under public comment, Dick Hooley read a short letter expressing concern regarding The Bear River 

Wind Project and requested that it be put on the agenda for the December City Council Meeting. Staff 

received a copy of the letter. 

Consent Calendar: MOTION: Approve items on the Consent Calendar. (Maxwell/Titus) 3 ayes.  
Councilmen Neils Lorenzen abstained. 

Approve MOU to the O’Rourke Foundation: Elizabeth Connor gave an update. MOTION: Approve MOU 
and authorize staff to generate a suitable Resolution. (Titus/Mierzwa). Unanimous.  

Approve the conveyance of the Ferndale Housing to the O’Rourke Foundation:   Elizabeth Connor gave 
update. MOTION: Approve Resolution 2011-42 A resolution of the City Council of the City of Ferndale 
conveying real estate interests identified by assessor parcel numbers 030-101-007, 030-101-010, 030-
141-009 to the L.D O’Rourke Foundation, A 501( c ) (3) Non-profit California Public Benefit Corporation. 
Unanimous. 

Resolution 2011-41 for 15th Progress Pay Request for Management and Construction Related Costs for 
the WWTP: Project Manager Kent Hanford gave an update. MOTION: Approve Resolution 201141. 
(Maxwell/Titus). Unanimous. 

Authorize City Manager to write a letter of support for the Humboldt County Fair Association: City 
Manager gave a brief summary. MOTION: Authorize City Manager to write a letter of support for the 
Humboldt County Fair Association. (Maxwell/Mierzwa). Unanimous.  

Pedestrian Improvement Project- There was a study session from 6:30-7pm. City Engineer Praj White 
gave update on project. MOTION: Award the Pedestrian Improvement Project to the lowest responsive 
bidder. (Farley/Titus). Unanimous. 

Change Design Review Zoning Ordinance from 3 votes to a majority vote:  This was the first reading. City 
Manager Parrish gave update. Approve changing the Design Review Zoning Ordinance from 3 votes to a 
majority vote and give guidance to staff to include in next month’s agenda for the second reading. 
(Maxwell/Titus).  

Under City Manager Report, City Manager Parrish reported on the Manhole Project along with giving an 
update on the Salt River Watershed Council. 

The next regular meeting will be on December 1, 2011. The meeting was adjourned at 8:29. 

 

Respectfully Submitted 

Brianna Smith, Deputy City Clerk 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 20 

  

 
 

 
 

Section 9 

 
CALL ITEMS 

 
These are items pulled from the consent agenda  

for discussion and a separate motion. 
 

Section 10 
 

PRESENTATIONS 
 

Section 11 

BUSINESS 

 

 

 

 
  



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 21 

Meeting Date: December 1, 2011 Agenda Item Number 11a. 

Agenda Item Title: Wind Turbine 

Presented  By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required:  No Action x Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Council listens to the proponents of the petitions and sets up a meeting in the future that will 
allow for all parties to participate. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 

The Shell Wind Energy gave a presentation in September and said that they would like to have a 

presentation in early spring to update the community on project progress. The City has not 

received addition information since that meeting. However, the City has received two petitions 

from concerned citizens that ask the Council to take an official position against the Bear River 

Ridge Wind Project. One petition asks that transportation through the City of Ferndale be 

refused and the other asks the Council to officially oppose the project all together. 

The County has supplied the City with an estimated project timeline that is from November 8, 

2011. This timeline will be distributed at the City Council Meeting. It should be noted that the 

County sees this project currently at line two. The County also says they are on a holding 

pattern until they receive engineering data on the transportation routes and transmission 

improvements.  

Currently it looks like the EIR is more than a year away for public review and the Ferndale 

Encroachment permits are a year an a half away. Considering that the County Planning 

Commission who will be issuing the Conditional Use Permit has not even received a staff report 

on this project, staff feels that there is enough time for the Council to hear from all sides before 

taking a position. 

 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 22 

 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 23 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 24 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 25 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 26 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 27 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 28 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 29 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 30 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 31 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 32 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 33 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 34 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 35 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 36 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 37 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 38 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 39 

 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 40 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 41 

 

 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 42 

 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 43 

 

  



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 44 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 45 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 46 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 47 

 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 48 

 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 49 

 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 50 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 51 

 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 52 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 53 

 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 54 

 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 55 

 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 56 

 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 57 

 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 58 

 

 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 59 

 

Meeting Date: December 1, 2011 Agenda Item Number 11b 

Agenda Item Title: Revised Draft Housing Element Update  

Presented By: George Williamson, Contract City Planner 

Type of Item:  Action  Discussion x Information 

Action Required: x No Action  Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

 
 

 

 Open public hearing;  

 Remind people that they have 3 minutes for comments;  

 Council listens to all public comments;  

 Closes public hearing.  

 City Council comments 

 City Council makes a decision. 

 

 

   

RECOMMENDATION: 

Review Draft Housing Element Update October 2011. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

The Draft Housing Element Update has been prepared to comply with the Department of 

Housing and Community Development (HCD) requirements. The Housing Element focuses on 

strategies to preserve and improve housing. A compliant Housing Element allows the City to 

apply for various housing program grants (CDBG, HOME, etc.); is an effective way to implement 

regional housing goals; and provides an opportunity to build support for, and review, local 

housing goals. 

 

Throughout Element preparation public hearings have been held by Planning Commission and 

City Council.  The Draft Housing Element Update contains the following chapters: 

 Chapter 1 Introduction - provides a summary of the Housing Element Update.   

 Chapter 2 Housing Needs - housing needs were evaluated based on population, 
employment, household characteristics, and existing housing stock. A majority of the 
data came from the U.S. Census Bureau, Department of Finance (DOF), Employment 
Development Department (EDD), and City records.  



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 60 

 Chapter 3 Resources and Constraints - includes a discussion of Regional Housing Needs 
Allocation, vacant land inventory, and an analysis of governmental and non-
governmental constraints that may be affecting housing opportunities.  

 Chapter 4 Review and Revision of Prior Housing Programs - includes a review of previous 
housing programs and determines what progress has been made in reaching Ferndale 
housing goals.  

 Chapter 5 Housing Goals, Policies and Programs- includes previous, revised, and new 
goals, policies, and programs as applicable, based on analysis in Chapter 4. Quantified 
objectives are identified, which specify the maximum number of housing units that can 
be constructed, rehabilitated, and conserved over a five year period, based on needs, 
resources, and constraints. 

 

The complete Draft Housing Element Update was submitted to HCD for review May 2010; a 

comprehensive HCD comment letter was received July 16, 2010.  Planwest worked with City 

staff to address all HCD requirements including additional analysis related to housing needs, 

resources and constraints, housing programs, and updated Navy Housing information related to 

accommodating regional housing need.  A revised Draft was submitted to HCD in Dec. 2010.  A 

subsequent HCD letter was received on March 1, 2011.  Comments from HCD staff indicate that 

the majority of the element complies with state requirements, but additional unanticipated 

analysis was needed. This additional work was due to HCD not accepting all former Navy 

housing units towards RHNA requirements. City Council approved a scope amendment May 

2011 for this additional analysis. City staff has been working with HCD staff to address these 

comments and provided the required analysis.  

  

DISCUSSION: 

The complete revised Draft Housing Element Update (October 2011) was submitted to HCD 

staff for review November 15, 2011. This Draft includes responses and additional analysis based 

on all comments received from HCD to date. City staff will continue to work with HCD during 

this review period; however substantial comments are not anticipated.  When HCD review is 

complete the Element can be adopted.  

 

 

 

 

 

  



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 61 

 

  



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 62 

 

  



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 63 

 

  



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 64 

 

  



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 65 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 66 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 67 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 68 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 69 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 70 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 71 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 72 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 73 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 74 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 75 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 76 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 77 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 78 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 79 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 80 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 81 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 82 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 83 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 84 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 85 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 86 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 87 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 88 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 89 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 90 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 91 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 92 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 93 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 94 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 95 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 96 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 97 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 98 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 99 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 100 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 101 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 102 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 103 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 104 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 105 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 106 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 107 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 108 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 109 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 110 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 111 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 112 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 113 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 114 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 115 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 116 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 117 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 118 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 119 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 120 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 121 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 122 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 123 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 124 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 125 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 126 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 127 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 128 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 129 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 130 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 131 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 132 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 133 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 134 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 135 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 136 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 137 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 138 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 139 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 140 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 141 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 142 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 143 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 144 

  



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 145 

Meeting Date: December 1, 2011 Agenda Item Number 11c 

Agenda Item Title: Draft Historical & Cultural Resources Element  

Presented By: George Williamson, Contract City Planner 

Type of Item: x Action x Discussion  Information 

Action Required:  No Action x Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

  

 Open public hearing;  

 Remind people that they have 3 minutes for comments;  

 Council listens to all public comments;  

 Closes public hearing.  

 City Council comments 

 City Council makes a decision. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Review Draft Historical & Cultural Resources Element and approve additional work to include a 

photograph representation from Ferndale of each architectural style described in Chapter 3, as 

recommended by Planning Commission. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

The comprehensive Ferndale General Plan Update was authorized as a multi-year process 

starting with the Historical and Cultural Resources Element.  This Element was selected first 

because the issue of managing historical resources is important to the City and can be clarified 

through inclusion in the General Plan. 

The purpose of the Historical and Cultural Resources Element is to preserve and enhance the 

community’s historic resources for heritage tourism, economic development and a continued 

source of community identity and pride.  The Element also addresses new development to 

ensure compatibility with existing historical resources and encourages both public and private 

stewardship.  The Historical and Cultural Resources Element of the City’s General Plan sets 

goals, policies and implementation strategies for the City’s role in planning for the unique 

historical aspects of Ferndale and its regional cultural setting in the Eel River Valley.  This 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 146 

Element is part of the City’s General Plan because preserving community character, history, and 

architectural features is important to Ferndale.  The Historical and Cultural Resources Element 

contains the following Chapters and goals: 

Element Contents: 

Preface  

Chapter 1 Introduction 

Chapter 2 Historical and Cultural Setting and Context 

Chapter 3  Historical Resources and Design Review 

Chapter 4 Goals, Policies, and Implementation Strategies 

Chapter 5 References 

 

GOAL 1 Preserve Ferndale’s distinctive and valued historic district, structures, and sites 

representing various periods of the City’s history. 

GOAL 2 Highlight the City’s historic resources for promoting heritage tourism as a means of 

economic development.  

GOAL 3 Educate the community and visitors about the value of the City’s historical resources 

through promotional materials. 

GOAL 4 Guide new development design and context to be compatible with existing historic 

resources, community character and livability of Ferndale. This guidance will minimize 

potential for demolition of existing structures and sites through preservation practices. 

Under each HCRE Goal are the guiding policies and implementation strategies associated with 

each goal. See the draft Element for policies and implantation strategies.  

 

During Element preparation the Ferndale Planning Commission held study sessions, conducted 

public outreach, and held public hearings.  The draft Element was also circulated for public 

review and comment. The City received one set of comments from Design Review Committee 

(DRC) members. The Planning Commission reviewed these comments and made 

recommendations as to if each comment should be incorporated into the Element. The 

recommended comments have been incorporated into the October 2011 Draft Element. 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 147 

One DRC recommendation that was also supported by the Planning Commission would require 

additional work beyond the scope of the current agreement. The additional work involves 

including a photograph representation from Ferndale of each architectural style described in 

Chapter 3. The Planning Commission recommended a scope and budget amendment so staff 

can complete this work and incorporate it into the Element. The cost for this additional work 

would not exceed $825.00 and could be completed within 30 days of approval.  

 

 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 148 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 149 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 150 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 151 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 152 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 153 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 154 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 155 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 156 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 157 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 158 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 159 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 160 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 161 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 162 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 163 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 164 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 165 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 166 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 167 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 168 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 169 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 170 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 171 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 172 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 173 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 174 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 175 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 176 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 177 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 178 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 179 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 180 

  



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 181 

Meeting Date: December 1, 2011 Agenda Item Number 11d 

Agenda Item Title: Residential Two-Family (R2) Density General Plan and Zoning 

Amendment and Ferndale Housing Combing Zone Overlay Zoning 

Amendment 

Presented By: George Williamson, Contract City Planner 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required:  No Action x Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

  

Mayor Farley  

 Open public hearing;  

 remind people that they have 3 minutes for comments;  

 Council listens to all public comments;  

 Mayor Farley closes public hearing.  

 City Council comments 

 City Council makes a decision. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve Resolution 2011- 44 General Plan/ Zoning Amendments for Residential Two-Family 

(R2) Density and Ferndale Housing Combining Zone:  

 

SUMMARY: 

General Plan and Zoning Amendment to increase the Residential Two-Family (R2) density from 

14 dwelling units per acre to 15 dwelling units per acre to meet Department of Housing and 

Community Development (HCD) density threshold for Housing Element Update compliance.    

 

Zoning Ordinance Amendment approval to add a Combing Zone overlay covering the existing 

duplex units at the Ferndale Housing project on Fairview Drive and Trident Lane; with a text 

amendment allowing existing duplexes as permitted uses. 

 

This is the first  Resolution reading and the Council can take separate action on these items if 

desired.  



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 182 

 

DISCUSSION: 

The Ferndale Planning Commission recommended approval of the above actions on October 19, 

2011.   

 

Housing Element Compliance 

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 65583.2(c)(3)(A) and (B) the Housing Element 

must demonstrate zoning and densities appropriate to encourage and facilitate the 

development of housing for lower-income households based on factors such as market 

demand, financial feasibility and development experience within zones. For communities with 

densities that meet specific standards (at least 15 units per acre for Ferndale) this analysis is not 

required.   

 

The existing Residential Two-Family (R2) density in Ferndale allows up to 14 dwelling units per 

acre (du/acre). Increasing this density to 15 du/acre will meet the HCD density standards for 

General Plan and Zoning to encourage and facilitate housing for lower-income households. 

Therefore, with the proposed density change, additional analysis for this issue may not be 

required for Housing Element compliance.   

 

Recommendation is to amend General Plan Section 2620.4 Residential Two-Family as follows: 

 

Density Range: 0-14 0 -15 dwelling units per acre.  

 

All other provisions remain in effect.  

 

Ferndale Housing Project 

The entire Ferndale Housing project area on Fairview Drive and Trident Lane is zoned 

Residential Single Family (R1).  Therefore, the existing duplex units located within the site are 

an existing non-conforming use. The residential use of the site has not lapsed due to the 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 183 

continued basic maintenance and upkeep. Additionally, the utilities have remained connected 

and operational and the bills have continued to be paid. Because of this, the occupancy and 

non-conforming residential use of the duplex units can continue. However, a Combining Zone 

overlay covering only the existing duplex units would make these units conforming.   

 

Non-conformity has limitations that could affect the long-term use of the units for intended 

low/moderate income families. Making these existing units conforming with specific overlay 

facilitates the intended use without affecting other areas of the City designated/ zoned R1. (See 

attached figure). 

 

Amend the Zoning Ordinance as follows: 

 

6.07 Housing Combing Zone or -H Zone. The H Zone is intended to cover the existing 

duplex units on a portion of the Ferndale Housing Project site located on 

Fairview Drive and Trident Lane. This combining zone principally permits the 

existing duplex units.  

 

All other applicable provisions remain in effect.  

 

 

 

 

 

  



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 184 

 

  



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 185 

RESOLUTION 2011-44 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FERNDALE 

APPROVES GENERAL PLAN/ ZONING AMENDMENTS FOR RESIDENTIAL TWO-FAMILY DENSITY 
AND FERNDALE HOUSING COMBINING ZONE 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Ferndale will amend the General Plan Residential Two-Family (R2) Density 
and add a Ferndale Housing Combing Zone Overlay covering the existing duplex units at the 
Ferndale Housing project on Fairview Drive and Trident Lane; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on the General Plan/ Zoning 
Amendments on October 19, 2011 and the City Council held a public hearing and conducted the 
first adoption reading on December 1, 2011; and  
 

WHEREAS, the General Plan Elements and General Plan/ Zoning Amendments are a discretionary 
Act Subject to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); and 
 

WHEREAS, a Negative Declaration (SCH# 2011112001) for the General Plan/ Zoning Amendments 
was adopted by City Council December 1, 2011; and   
 

WHEREAS, the City Council made the General Plan/ Zoning Amendments available, held noticed 
public hearings, and heard testimony as part of those hearings, prior to taking action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Ferndale approves the 
General Plan Residential Two-Family (R2) Density and Ferndale Housing Combing Zone Overlay. 
 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 5th day of January, 2012 by the following vote: 

 

AYES:    

NOES:    

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:           
      Jeffrey Farley, Mayor 

Attest: 

      
Brianna Smith, Deputy City Clerk 

  



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 186 

 

Meeting Date: December 1, 2011 Agenda Item Number 11e 

Agenda Item Title: Initial Study and Negative Declaration for the Ferndale Housing 

Element, Historical & Cultural Resources Element and General Plan/ 

Zoning Amendments 

Presented By: George Williamson, Contract City Planner 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required:  No Action x Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

  

 Open public hearing;  

 Remind people that they have 3 minutes for comments;  

 Council listens to all public comments;  

 Closes public hearing.  

 City Council comments 

 City Council makes a decision. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Adopt Resolution 2011-45 for the Housing Element, Historical and Cultural Resources Element, 

and General Plan/ Zoning Amendments Negative Declaration (SCH#2011112001).  

 

DISCUSSION: 

The Initial Study (IS) and Negative Declaration (ND) programmatically evaluates the City of 

Ferndale Housing Element Update (Housing Element), Historical & Cultural Resources Element 

(HCRE), and General Plan / Zoning Amendments (GP/ZAs).  It evaluates the effects that goals, 

policies, and related implementation measures proposed in the Elements would potentially 

have on the environment. The IS focuses on the secondary effects from adoption of the 

Elements and GP/ZAs and is not as detailed as a project-level IS. Project-level CEQA review will 

be required for development to occur, to be prepared when applicable development permits 

are sought. The Housing Element, Historical & Cultural Resources Element and General Plan/ 

Zoning Amendments have been discussed in the previous agenda items.  

 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 187 

Consultation with Bear River Band of Rohnerville Rancheria Tribal Historic Preservation Officer 

(THPO) was conducted about the General Plan Update. The THPO had no comments at this time 

and there are no known Tribal resources within City Limits. Public hearing and CEQA notices 

were sent to keep the Tribe informed about the General Plan Update progress.  

 

As a result of the Initial Study prepared by the City of Ferndale, it has been found that the 

proposed project will not have any significant effects on the environment.  The Initial Study and 

Negative Declaration were circulated for a 30-day review period which ended on November 30, 

2011. No comments have been received as of posting of this agenda. 

 

Since the Initial Study determined the project would have no significant environmental impacts, 

a No Effect Determination request was submitted to the California Department of Fish and 

Game (DFG), which would waive their CEQA filing fee.  If DFG determines the project may have 

environmental impacts a $2,044.00 fee must be submitted when the Notice of Determination is 

filed with the County Clerk. The $50.00 County Clerk filing fee will also be required.  

 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 188 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 189 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 190 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 191 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 192 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 193 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 194 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 195 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 196 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 197 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 198 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 199 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 200 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 201 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 202 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 203 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 204 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 205 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 206 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 207 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 208 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 209 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 210 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 211 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 212 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 213 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 214 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 215 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 216 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 217 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 218 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 219 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 220 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 221 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 222 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 223 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 224 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 225 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 226 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 227 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 228 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 229 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 230 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 231 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 232 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 233 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 234 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 235 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 236 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 237 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 238 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 239 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 240 

RESOLUTION 2011-45 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FERNDALE 
ADOPTS A NEGATIVE DECLARTATION FOR HOUSING ELEMENT UPDATE, HISTORICAL AND 

CULTURAL RESOURCES ELEMENT AND GENERAL PLAN/ ZONING AMENDMENTS 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission conducted public hearings on the Draft Housing Element 
Update, Draft Historical and Cultural Resources Element and General Plan/ Zoning Amendments 
and the City Council held a public hearing on December 1, 2011; and  
 

WHEREAS, the General Plan Elements and General Plan/ Zoning Amendments are a discretionary 
Act Subject to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); and 
 

WHEREAS, as a result of the CEQA Initial Study prepared by the City of Ferndale, as lead agency, it 
has been found that the proposed project will not have any significant effects on the environment; 
and   
 

WHEREAS, A Notice of Intent was filed with the County Clerk, and the Draft Negative Declaration 
was circulated to the public, local agencies and State Clearinghouse (SCH# 2011112001); and 
 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Ferndale adopts a Negative 
Declaration (SCH#2011112001) for the Housing Element, Historical and Cultural Resources 
Element, and General Plan/ Zoning Amendments and directs the City Clerk to File a Notice of 
Determination with the County Clerk.   
 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 1st day of December, 2011 by the following vote: 

 

AYES:    

NOES:    

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:           
      Jeffrey Farley, Mayor 

Attest: 

      
Brianna Smith, Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

 
 
 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 241 

Meeting Date: December 1, 2011 Agenda Item Number 11f 

Agenda Item Title: Resolution 2011-46 for 16th Progress Pay Request for 
Management and Construction Related Costs for the WWTP 

Presented  By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required:  No Action x Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve Resolution 2011-46 16th Progress Pay Request for Management and Construction 
Related Costs for the WWTP. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Work on our WWTP began on August 2, 2010 and this is the 16th draw down from the USDA 
loan. The costs associated with this draw down include costs from Wahlund Construction for 
$93.959.30 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
$93.959.30 from the USDA loan account. 
 

 

   

 

 

 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 242 

 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 243 

 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 244 

 

RESOLUTION 2011-46 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FERNDALE 

APPROVES THE  SIXTEENTH PARTIAL PAYMENT REQUEST TO WAHLUND CONSTRUCTION, MANHARD 

CONSULTING FOR THE WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITY PROJECT 

 

WHEREAS, Wahlund Construction began Work on our Wastewater Treatment Plant on August 2, 2010; 

and  

WHEREAS, Manhard Consulting is supplying Construction Administration for this project; and  

WHEREAS, The City of Ferndale will be processing partial pay requests on a monthly basis, as well as 

periodic individual bills; and  

WHEREAS, The City Council has received the sixteenth partial payment request of $93,959.30 for 

Wahlund. This all falls within the parameters of our WWTP budget. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Ferndale hereby approves 

payment of the Sixteenth partial payment request in the amount of $93,959.30 for Wahlund. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 1st  day of December, 2011 by the following vote:  

AYES:       

NOES:      

ABSENT:    

ABSTAIN:    

                    ____________________ 

                Jeffrey Farley, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

Brianna Smith, Deputy City Clerk 

 

  



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 245 

Meeting Date: December 1, 2011 Agenda Item Number 11g 

Agenda Item Title: Approve Wastewater Treatment Plant Change Order number 
13. 

Presented  By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required:  No Action x Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve Wastewater Treatment Plant Change Order number 13. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

The City Council will have a study session prior to this meeting, and will now vote on the change 

order as presented during the study session. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
To be presented at the study session. 
  



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 246 

 

 

Meeting Date: November 3, 2011 Agenda Item Number 11h 

Agenda Item Title: Change the Design Review Zoning Ordinance from 3 votes to a 
majority vote. (2nd reading) 

Presented  By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required:  No Action x Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Design Review Zoning Ordinance change from 3 votes to a majority vote. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 

A recent vote by the Design Review Committee revealed that our Zoning Ordinance requires a 

super majority vote to pass a design review application. Even the Planning Commission does 

not require a super majority vote on most applications. Section 6.05.4d could be changed to 

reflect the following: 

 

6.05.4 Design Review Use Permits for structural or building alterations, remodeling or 
improvements so as to change the outward appearance of the structure or building, 
including changes in exterior paint color, shall be subject to the following 
procedures: 
a. The Planning Commission shall appoint two of its members as Design Review 

Committee Members. 
b. The Planning Commission shall interview and recommend to the City Council 

appointment of three members from the 95536 zip code, preferably with 
design background in planning, architecture, landscape architecture, historical 
restoration, or other similar experience related to the design of physical 
improvements and buildings in the following manner: 
i. The City Clerk shall advertise the vacancy(ies) (via notice in 

newspaper, public posting) and notify Ferndale residents to contact 
the City Clerk for an application, which can be picked up at City Hall or 
mailed to the applicant.  

ii. Applications must be received by the City Clerk by ten (10) calendar 
days from the date of posting of the vacancy. Applications must be 
forwarded to the members of the Planning Commission by the next 
regular or special meeting. The Planning Commission will interview 
applicants and make appointments at their next regular or special 
meeting. 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 247 

iii. A priority ranking of the Commission’s recommendations as well as 
reasons supporting the ranking will be forwarded to the City Council 
for their next regular or special meeting. 

iv. The first person(s) that receives a majority will be selected to fill the 
vacancy. If a majority is not obtained, or if there are no applicants, the 
vacancy will be re-advertised and the clock resets. 

c. The Design Review Committee is a sub-committee of, and reports to the 
Planning Commission. 

d. Design Review Use Permit applications shall be forwarded to and reviewed by 
the Design Review Committee Members.  No discussion between committee 
members shall take place, unless in a duly noticed meeting of the Committee.  
i. If 3 a majority of the members present approve, the City Clerk shall 

issue a Design Review Permit. 
ii. If 3 a majority of the members present deny, the applicant can change 

the design, or can ask that the application go to the Planning 
Commission at a fee as set by the Fees and Fines Schedule.  

 

 

  



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 248 

Meeting Date: December 1, 2011 Agenda Item Number 11i 

Agenda Item Title: TTS Station 

Presented  By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required:  No Action x Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve contribution of $2000.00 for the continuation of the TTS station on Francis Creek at 

Van Ness. 

BACKGROUND: 

The purpose of this Turbidity Threshold Sampling (TTS) monitoring station is to provide 

guidance on how much suspended sediment can be expected to enter the Salt River dredge 

areas over time from the Francis Creek watershed. The Salt River Ecosystem Restoration Project 

is a joint effort by various agencies to improve riparian and fish habitat, reduce flooding, 

enhance sediment routing and lessen sewer plant impacts on Francis Creek and the Salt River. 

Suspended sediment yields from the Francis Creek watershed will continue to be quantified to 

provide planning data for future dredging downstream. (FRC Report 2011) 

Some of the things gained from the TTS station: 

 Baseline flow and suspended sediment data 

 Info for grants for restoration 

 Info for grant applications 

 Fisheries habitat information 

 Info for Salt River channel excavation and restoration 

 Data for Francis Creek dilution of sewer plant outfall 

 On-line real time Francis Creek flooding info 

 Monitoring of large slide suspended sediment plumes through downtown Ferndale 

 Quantification of suspended sediment inputs into Francis Creek from cattle operations 

 Info for progress of HCRCD efforts on Francis Creek 

 Data for documentation of landowner water pumping from Francis Creek 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 $2000.00  



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 249 

Meeting Date: December 1, 2011 Agenda Item Number 11j 

Agenda Item Title: Letter to CPUC in Support of the Scotia Power Plant 

Presented  By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required:  No Action x Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Authorize Mayor to sign Letter of Support for Scotia Power Plant to CPUC. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

Greenleaf Power, LLC and PG&E have reached mutual agreement on an amendment to their existing 

Power Purchase Agreement for the Eel River Power plant in Scotia. The amendment will insure that 

PG&E will continue to receive reliable, renewable energy for the next 3 years. This letter will ask The 

CPUC to approve the amendment. 

  



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 250 

City of Ferndale 

 
 
 

 Suzannah E. Mellon 1992 

-:  
City of Ferndale POB 1095 
Ferndale, CA 95536 
November 16, 2011  
RE: PG&E Advice 3944-E (Service List R.11-05-005)  
 
California Utilities Commission  
Tariff Unit, Fourth Floor  
505 Van Ness Avenue  
San Francisco, CA 94102  
FAX: 415-703-2200  
mas@cpuc.ca.gov and jnj@cpuc.ca.gov 

Attention: Tariff Unit  

It has come to my attention that Greenleaf Power, LLC and PG&E have reached mutual agreement on an  
amendment to their existing Power Purchase Agreement for the Eel River Power plant in Scotia,  
California. This agreed amendment will ensure that PG&E will continue to receive reliable, renewable  
energy for the next three years and help meet the state's 33% renewable portfolio standard. Though  
this agreed amendment is awaiting CPUC approval, it is in the best interest of Humboldt County and I  
strongly urge the CPUC to approve this amendment.  

Unemployment in Humboldt County is near record levels, the population of 134,600 has a jobless rate  
approaching 12%. Therefore, we must do everything in our power to maintain existing jobs. The Eel  
River Power plant employs over 30 people and supports more than 85 other indirect jobs in the 
forestry,  
agriculture, and trucking industries that provide fuel to the plant. In addition, there are dozens of  
indirect jobs in the service sector that rely upon the plant, including consulting engineers, plant  
maintenance contractors, equipment suppliers, and many local businesses, all of which are vital to  
Humboldt County's economic future.  

The agreed amendment ensures the supply of 28 megawatts of reliable, renewable energy for the  
region. Unlike other forms of renewable energy that rely on weather conditions, biomass power plants  
can provide electricity 24 hours a day, seven days a week, by using discarded wood wastes, agricultural  
by-products and various green wastes for fuel, while also providing beneficial soil amendments to local  
farmers from the wood ash that is produced during the combustion process.  

Biomass power plants also preserve the environment by producing lower emissions profiles than  
conventional fossil fuel power plants. The Scotia facility is carbon neutral and will help Humboldt  
County meet the AB 32 greenhouse gas emissions goals through the reduction of open burning of  

mailto:mas@cpuc.ca.gov
mailto:jnj@cpuc.ca.gov


December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 251 

wastes from agriculture and forestry industries that would otherwise occur should the plant cease to  
operate, as well as avoid landfill disposal of these wastes; which produce methane, the strongest of all  
greenhouse gases.  

To summarize; the agreed amendment provides clean renewable energy, sustains local jobs, and  
preserves the environment through lower emissions, all to the long term economic benefit of Humboldt  
County. Therefore, I/we support this amendment and urge the CPUC to do the same. If you have any  
questions or would like to discuss this further, please feel free to contact me at: ###-###-####.  

Sincerely,  

 

Jeffrey Farley 

Mayor 

 

 

Cc:  California Utilities Commission  

Director of Energy, Room 4004  

505 Van Ness Avenue  

San Francisco, CA 94102  
FAX: 415-703-2200  
mas@cpuc.ca.gov and jnj@cpuc.ca.gov 

Honesto Gatchalian, Energy Division  
California Utilities Commission  
505 Van Ness Avenue  
San Francisco, CA 94102  
FAX: 415-703-2200  
 

Brian K. Cherry  
Vice President, Regulation and Rates  
Pacific Gas and Electric Company  
77 Beale Street, Mail Code BlOC  
PO Box 770000  
San Francisco, CA 94177  
FAX: 415-973-6520 

 

  

mailto:mas@cpuc.ca.gov
mailto:jnj@cpuc.ca.gov


December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 252 

 

 

Section 12 

 
CORRESPONDENCE 

 
Correspondence Files are available for review at City Hall during 
regular business hours, Monday through Thursday, 9am to 4pm. 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 253 

Section 13 

REPORTS 
 

Section 13a:  City Manager Staff Report 
CITY MANAGER: 
 
Meetings:  
 

 Kiwanis meeting 1st and 3rd Tuesday of the month at 4:30 pm 

 City Council- November 3rd - 5:30-9:00 pm 

 City Manager meeting- November17th -  3:00-5:00 pm 

 RCEA  Board meeting – Nov 21st 3:15- 5:00 pm cancelled 

 Conversations with ERD numerous meetings and discussions regarding universal pickup and 
greenwaste. Program started at the beginning of November. We have over a hundred properties 
signed up. 

 Weekly meeting on WWTF progress with Manhard project manager. 

 Daily meetings with chief regarding police activities. 

 Daily interaction with Staff regarding daily workload. We continue to look at organizational 
changes to adjust for City Clerk absences. She will be off on family leave for an undetermined 
period of time. I am very proud of the job staff has been doing to keep up with what has been a 
very frenetic pace for the last several months.  

 Met with construction manager, Wahlund construction representative and USDA 
representative, to go over monthly pay request. Also went over construction progress and 
possible change orders. We are putting the finishing touches on the wastewater facility and 
working on the wetland site. 

 Continuing discussions with Fresnel lens committee members to go over a project to move 
Lens from fair to museum. On August 15th we sent a proposal to the Coast Guard and are 
waiting to hear back from them. We have not heard from Attorney General regarding our 
proposal. Funding proposal should go before the nonprofit in January for renovation costs.  

 Numerous conversations regarding Salt River Project with Watershed Council members, 
NRC representatives, council members and citizens. We continue work with property 
owners in effort to get support for project. Hope to have work start next spring. The project 
remains very important to the City because of the location next to our wastewater facility 
and the health of Francis Creek and our whole drainage system. It should be noted that 
without all the property owners signing on to the project we will not be able to move 
forward. We are trying to get all the required signatures by the end of this month. 

 Numerous meetings with individual councilmen and the mayor regarding City issues.  
 The EECBG grant is moving forward. Remember this is a grant that the City gave to the 

schools to do energy upgrades. Both the grammar school and high school are receiving new 
lighting systems that will save them a pretty substantial amount every year. The City will be 
required to supply the financing and then be reimbursed for those costs within 45 days. The 
County representative is attempting to receive funds from the CEC that will limit the time 
the City waits for reimbursement. Still moving forward as planned. 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 254 

 Daily meetings with Public Works in morning to go over daily activities. We are still waiting 
for an agreement from Martinek with the Silva regarding our access to Russ Park off Eugene 
Street. Francis Creek Farms has started building the cyclone fence the length of Firemen’s 
Park. The cement work and galvanized posts should be done in a few weeks. The fence is of 
very high quality and be a very nice addition to the park, and is built to last for a very long 
time. Remember that Francis Creek Farm is paying for the entire cost of the fence as well as 
the new fence that runs along the Public Works bordering Bocce courts.  We have 
completed some grading work at the Bluff Street Russ Park parking lot as well as some 
cement pads for a bicycle rack and garbage and recycling bin. Drainage ditches around town 
have been cleaned in anticipation of winter weather. 

 Sculpture in City Green looks great! 
 Daily discussions and updates on City Council agenda items and city issues with Treasurer 

and administrative assistant. Most of our time related to reviewing past procedures to make 
sure that everyone is aware of what needs to be done and which one of us is taking care of 
it. We continue to improve the interaction between design review, planning department and 
office personnel. The Sign Ordinance Committee is making good progress. The current 
ordinance and procedures are still in effect and businesses must still go through design 
review and procedures for placement of signs and related issues. 

  Discussions with City Planner regarding design review and planning issues. Most of time 
spent on Housing Element, Historical and Cultural Element, the General Plan update and 
city budget, and changes that we need for the Ferndale housing area to comply with our 
zoning element. We will have public hearings for these items at our December meeting. 

 Navy Housing: We have finished the process of transfer of the Navy housing complex to the 
O’Rourke Foundation and all documents have been recorded with the County. It is our 
understanding that they are working very hard to renovate the dwellings in hopes that they 
will be occupied as soon as possible. It is already looking very better. 

 Met with Councilmen Titus to collaborate a letter to the CHRA in support  of non-overlapped 
racing during annual county fair. 

 Number of meetings with members of the SRWC regarding the operation and maintenance 
of the Salt River watershed after the project’s completion. This will be the area we focus on 
in the next few months and years. The Board voted to increase the size of the Board at the 
last meeting in anticipation of getting some of the sub committees up and going and to 
increase representation of the watershed on the board. 

 Met with Scott Bauer of F&G and Tom Stevens regarding last year’s landslide. Scott has 
agreed to contact landowner to gain access to area. We will continue to plan some sort of 
monitoring program during the winter weather season. 

 Met with Supervisor Smith and Mayor regarding the SRRP. 
 Discussions with John Driscoll related to SRRP. 
 November 30th and December 1st I will be attending a strategic planning session and Parsac 

board meeting in Sacramento. Chief Smith will be filling in for me at the City Council 
meeting. 

 Discussions with John Miller, senior planner for county regarding wind turbine project. John 
was very helpful and provided me with estimated timeline of the project. Discussions with 
RCEA as to information that they have received regarding the turbine project. 

 
 
 
FINANCIAL MANAGER/DEPUTY CITY CLERK: 
 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 255 

Meetings: 
  

 Meeting with Public Works on Vehicle List and Street Lights 

 Conference call with PARSAC on Office Issues 

 Meeting with City Manager on various Office Issues 
 

Projects: 

 

 Payroll 

 Accounts Payable 

 Accounts Receivable 

 Answer Phones/Greet Visitors 

 Purchase Various Supplies 

 Receive and File October Financial Reports 

 TDA Audit  

 Receive and File Quarterlies 

 State Controller’s Wage Report 

 State Controller’s Streets Report 

 Prepare Multi Year Budget Comparison 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DEPUTY CITY CLERK: 

MEETINGS: 

 Sign Committee Meeting- 11/3/2011 

 City Council Meeting- 11/3/2011 

 Design Review Meeting-11/10/2011 

 Planning Commission Meeting- 11/16/2011 

 Various meeting with CM on daily office activities. 

 

PROJECTS: 

 Assembled Sign Committee Packet.-11/3/2011 

 Assembled City Council Packet.-11/3/2011 

 Assembled Design Review Packet.-11/10/2011 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 256 

 Assembled Planning Commission Packet-11/16/2011 

 Uploaded Council Packet to web. 

 Uploaded Planning Packet to web. 

 Set-up for City Council Meeting Meetings-11/3/2011 

 Set-up for Planning Commission Meeting-11/16/2011 

 Typed Minutes for Sign Committee Meeting. 

 Typed Minutes for Design Review Meeting. 

 Typed Minutes for Planning Commission Meeting.. 

 Answer Phones/ Messages/Greet Visitors & helping to answer various questions. 

 Go over mail with City Manager/Make Copies/Distribute Mail. 

 Business Licenses. 

 Dog Licenses. 

 Coordinated with City Planner on Use Permit for 393 Main Street. 

 Coordinated with Building Inspector on Building Permits. 

 Made Electronic Deposits. 

 Filled out Field Observation Complaint Forms. 

 Faxed List of all Finalized Building Permits and Sent to Assessor. 

 Various Filing. 

 Reservations for the Community Center and City Hall. 

 Training on new remote deposit program 

 

Building and Encroachment Permits Issued 

960 Rose Replace Siding 

740 Herbert Re-roof 

740 Vanston Install new furnace 

    

CITY PLANNER: 

Meetings & Planning   
 Coordinated with City Manager and Deputy City Clerk on planning and development projects.  

 Prepared public notice and staff report for proposed General Plan/ Zoning Amendments (GP/ZA) 
for R2 density change for Housing Element compliance and Ferndale Housing (H) Combing Zone 
overlay for existing duplex units on the Navy Housing site. Scheduled for 12/1 City Council (CC) 
hearing.  

 Attended 11/16 Planning Commission (PC) meeting. 
 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 257 

Projects 
 393 Main Street - Use Permit for showroom and wood/metal workshop. Prepared public notices 

for newspaper and sent to property owners within 300 feet. Prepared staff report for 11/16 PC 
hearing.   

 General Plan Update - Historical & Cultural Resources Element (HCRE) - Incorporated final 
comments based on Planning Commission 9/28 review including adding architectural style 
column to Table 1.  Finalized draft for City Council review. Prepared public notice and staff 
report for 12/1 CC hearing.  

 General Plan Update - Housing Element Update - Completed revised draft for City Council 
review and submitted redline/strikeout version to Dept. of Housing and Community 
Development for final review. Prepared public notice and staff report for 12/1 CC hearing.   

 California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) compliance - Continued preparation of CEQA Initial 
Study and Draft Negative Declaration (IS/DND) for HCRE, Housing Element Update, and 
proposed GP/ ZA for R2 density change and H- Combining Zone. Prepared Notice of Intent; filed 
with County Clerk and sent to Bear River and Wiyot Tribes. Prepared Notice of Completion and 
submitted IS/DND to State Clearinghouse; public review period is Nov. 1 - 30.   

 

CITY ENGINEER: 

Sewer Projects:  – 
o New Sewer Manholes Located in Main Street with Cleanouts at various locations  

 Work is Proceeding with coordination between Sewer Operator and Contractor 
Pedestrian Improvement Project –  

o Based on request by the Office of City Engineer Council Authorized the Project to be 
awarded to the lowest responsive bidder. 

o Instructions to bidders allowed Bidder #4 the opportunity to complete UDBE paperwork 
upon request.  Bidder #4 responded timely with properly filled out compliant 
documentation per the specification documents. 

o Bidder #4 is the lowest responsive bidder. 
o Project Award Process is underway. 

 

Applications –  

o LLA1120 Christiansen – has been recorded. 
o Inspected completed improvements for the Hamper subdivision.   A conditional occupancy 

was issued in coordination with the Building Inspector for Matt Pigeon 
o Correct Keyes LLA, revisions to Notice of LLA per Assessor’s Office 

 

General Engineering –  
o HCAOG – attended TAC meeting 

 Meeting Summary 

 TAC was asked to recommend to the HCAOG Board one of three 
options regarding support of the Eureka Arcata Corridor Project. 

1. Support Full Build – est. $24 Million 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 258 

2. Support Partial Build – est $16 Million 
3. No Support 

 

 TAC after much deliberation voted for Opt. 2. 
 

 City of Ferndale was granted the opportunity to apply for  
$275,000.00 from the TE to complete pedestrian 
improvements. 

o Coordinating DBE, ARRA and Misc. details for Federal Projects with Caltrans Local Assistance 
o WWTF Construction Permit Compliance - updated Storm water Pollution and Prevention 

Plan to maintain compliance with the State's permit.   
o ARRA reporting for Pedestrian Improvement Project 
o Review opportunities for new transportation projects funded by State or Federal sources 
o Matt Pidgeon Construction Support 
o Working on a capital improvement priority list (roads and drainage)  
o Research and correspondence with City and County staff regarding Francis Creek sediment 

deposition and dredging. 
o Navy Housing title transfer assistance 
o Master Planning - Strategize potential drainage projects, that won’t increase flow 

downstream, in the current Drainage Plan that could be included in CIP 
 

Meetings and Committees –  
o Attend HCOAG TAC Meeting 

Reporting and Correspondence –  
o Prepared monthly staff report 
o General correspondence and meetings with City Staff 

 

WASTEWATER OPERATIONS:         

 New Plant Startup and Training: 
o Aeromod was in to start up the belt press. This is the last piece of equipment to start up. 

The digester weren’t quite at the solids level desirable to get the best waste product but we 
were able to run for about 3 hours and the press produced solids at 13% which is within the 
design parameter of 12-18%. It will only get better as we let the loading on the digesters get 
higher. It was about half of the optimum level that we need to produce a cake in the 15-18% 
range.  

o CPO spent time refining the SEMS operational software program to fit our particular process 
and format. This program streamlines a lot of what we do in operations. As we input the 
data for our daily and monthly lab and test results, those results are populated and 
imported into the new electronic monthly report that is uploaded directly to the Water 
Boards website. The software also keeps track of regular maintenance performed on 
equipment and, based on user inputs, alerts staff when routine maintenance is required. 

o The plant is running well above expectations this early in the process. All our lab results are 
well below the required levels. Adjustments to the process regarding our return activated 
sludge (RAS) rates and our waste activated sludge (WAS) rates have improved performance 
immensely. The most significant process change we have made is to put the system in “Auto 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 259 

DO” mode. Dissolved Oxygen is probably the single biggest parameter in the system that 
controls the efficiency of the process. We set the system to maintain a desired DO and the 
blowers react to that level. If the DO is too high in the aerators the blowers ramp down even 
to the point of shutting off completely if needed. If the DO is too low the blowers ramp up. 
This is a process that will save on energy costs in the long run. The biggest change we see is 
in the new treatment is our removal of Biological Oxygen Demand(BOD) and Total 
Suspended Solids (TSS). Our current permit requires us to remove 65% of both and the new 
permit says 85%. In our first month of full operation, before the plant was really even dialed 
in, we had a removal of 97% and 99% respectively for both parameters. The UV is providing 
the proper disinfection of the bacteria. No measurable counts of bacteria have been found 
in the samples we took in October. 

o The foot print of wetland area of the former aerated lagoon is nearly completed. There is 
still construction of the actual wetland put all the excess piles of dirt material around the 
construction site has been applied. 

 DCI has nearly completed the Main Street portion of the manhole job. Pre-field work was done to 
locate the main lines so we would know where to place the manholes. Upon inspecting the line at 
Fern there was already a manhole at this location but it was buried under 4 inches of asphalt and 
concrete. Once the manhole cover was exposed it was found that the existing infrastructure was 
sufficient to accomplish the needs intended by the city so all that was needed was a little 
rehabilitation at ground level and a new lid. Seeing that there was a possibility of needing two 
manholes at this location this was a huge savings in the cost of the project. As planned, a manhole 
was installed at Lewis. All that is left is the manhole at Harrison and Cleveland and the project will be 
complete. 

 Staff continued to receive new inventory for the lab. 

 Additional process testing done to monitor efficiency of treatment. 

 Staff researching best and most cost effective options for disposing of dewatered sludge. CPO met 
with ERD and they have tentatively agreed to take the sludge ‘as is’ off the press dumped directly 
into their refuse pile for transport to end landfill. Staff is still developing a dewatering schedule and 
strategy which will in reality be dictated by the loading on the digesters and could change from 
month to month. Staff has a lot of control over this process so it’s not seen as a difficult issue to 
figure out. 

 Staff discuss punch list with Kent Hanford 

 CPO provided USDA with invoices needed for partial reimbursement once the project is complete. 

 CPO and City Manager discussed the addition of enclosures over the pump panels. 

 Staff assisted Wycoff Plumbing with sewer lateral blockage on Washington. The problem was on the 
customer’s side but the plumber was unable to clear the blockage. The city assisted to make sure 
nothing was being pushed into the collection system. The city was able to clear the blockage with 
their equipment. 

 Staff realized that sometime during the month that a small generator and high power washer hose 
was stolen from the old sewer plant site. PD was notified and is investigating. 

 CPO had conversation with Lisa Bernard regarding dewatering and discharge strategies. 

 Staff installed rubber covers on the UV channel. This reduces the noise in the filter building and also 
reduces any odor that may occur. 

 Contacted PD regarding setting up electronic sign during the road closure. 

 Staff performed numerous routine process tests in new lab. This will be a weekly routine to keep 
operators informed on the condition of the process and assist us in making any changes needed. 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 260 

 Trojan was in to perform Bioassay on UV system. This extensive test is not needed immediately to 
run the UV but when complete it will be Title 22 certified meaning that if we ever found the need to 
irrigate on public land we would not have to go through this certification again. 

 CPO assisted surveyor at Navy Housing in locating portions of the collection system. 

 New desk installed in lab. Lab computer system set up. 

 CPO updated collection system data for the Water Board website. 

 CPO refined the design of the operation forms applicable to new process. 

 CPO did shopping for CWEA installation banquet. 

 CPO attended the CWEA annual installation and awards banquet in Eureka. The CPO is on the board 
of the North Coast chapter of CWEA. 

 Video inspection at 835 Howard Ave. 

 CPO input data in SEMS data base 

 CPO filled out POs 

 Prepared monthly sample containers 

 Filled out POs for monthly invoices 

 CPO attended monthly meeting with Debbie Coggins, USDA 

 Began draining lagoon through the newly installed flow pipe from the lagoon to the master lift 
station and eventually through the plant. Staff is monitoring the effects of the addition of this flow 
on the existing process. The plan is to be able to empty the lagoon completely and treat that water 
through the new facility. 

 Chlorine and Sulfur Dioxide disinfection and dechlorination system taken off line with respect to the 
UV system. All the equipment will remain in place and be used as a backup. Staff will return the bulk 
of the chemicals and keep on hand only what may be needed in the case of an emergency if the UV 
system should malfunction. This is highly unlikely but precautionary measures are good to plan for. 

 Took care of sewer tax issues for a few customers 

 Monthly samples picked up by NCL 

 CPO train operator Coppini on SEMS software management 

 CPO reviewed and signed daily operation sheets for WWTF  

 CPO performed the daily operation of WWTP during operator Coppini’s scheduled day off. 

 The state has gone to a mandatory online Electronic Self Monitoring Report (eSMR) system. All 
reporting is now done online.  

 Operator Coppini performed general maintenance around the facility 

 Operator Coppini filed online SSO report.  

 Operator Coppini performed the normal in-house weekly and monthly testing and scheduled lab 
work to be done. 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

Oct 2011 Flows Total Average Minimum Maximum 

Influent MGD 5.620 .181 .065 .371 

Effluent MGD* 30.245 1.139 .094 1.77 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 261 

 

*This includes pumping down the pond and running to irrigation also. 

  

PUBLIC WORKS: 

CITY PROPERTY 

 Firemen’s Park 
o Routine Maintenance, i.e. Mowing Park and Baseball Field. 
o Routine daily walk through to pick-up garbage.  
o Mowed the Bocce area and BB Field. 

 Park Restrooms 
o Routinely cleaned every day of the week including weekends. 
o Installed new paper towel dispensers. 

 Russ Park 
o Routine maintenance: Pulling out trash from trash & recycle bins daily. 
o Picked-up loose garbage from Russ Park. 
o Poured two pads of concrete at Russ Park. One for a bike rack and the other for garbage can. 
o Hauled rebar and 4x4 posts for Russ Park – CCC working on it. 
o Working with Jim Stretch on Russ Park projects. 

 Town Hall 
o Routine mowing and weedeating 
o Pull out trash daily 
o Worked on the base for the sculpture on the lawn at Town Hall 
o Helped set up the sculpture. 
o  

 Library 
o Routine mowing and weed eating 

 City Parking Lot 
o Picked up garbage – Routinely as least once a week unless otherwise warranted. 

 Main Street Restrooms 
o Routine maintenance: Daily cleaning and stocking of Main Street Restrooms – 7 days a week. 

 Community Center 
o Routine checking of CC when the facility is rented before and after. 
o Showing CC to potential renters as needed 
o Richard – 25 chairs for CC 
o Ongoing repair of the tables at the CC. 
o Received the estimates for the CC kitchen roof. 
o Reinstalled a new eyewash station in the CC Kitchen. 
o CHILDRENS CENTER 
o Installing new metal core door at the Children’s Center plus new locks. 
 

 Police Department 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 262 

o Routine mowing and weed eating 
 

 Scout Hall - Routine mowing and weed eating  

  

 Roadsides - Routine mowing and weed eating 

 Wet Well –  

 . 

  

 Public Works –  

 Working with Katie from Redwood Coast Energy Authority on greenhouse gas reduction. 
 

      Children’s Center –  

 

Storm Drains 

Removed debris from all the drains around town. – 

 

 

Sewers 
Helped unload chemicals 

Lateral estimates for 1182 Rose Ave. (Dedini). 

 

STREETS AND SIDEWALKS 

 Routine maintenance: Regular maintenance of roadside mowing. 

 Routine picking up trash at the edge of town. 

 Routine maintenance: Continuing to pick-up piles around town as resident call and request removal. 

 Routine maintenance: Sweep Main St., Monday, Wednesday and Friday mornings. 

 Marked out USA locates throughout town. – When needed. 

 Removing piles. 

 Ordered new street signs for throughout town plus the hardware. 

 Cut brush covering the speed limit sign on Bluff St. 

 Cut overhanging vegetation at Arlington and Main covering the NO PARKING and STOP signs. 

 PW has been removing all old or broken street signs and replacing them. 

 Picked up garbage at Coast Guard housing. 

 Cold patch on Bluff St. 
 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 263 

VEHICLE / EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 

 Routine monthly maintenance and weekly maintenance on frequently used equipment. 

  

 MISCELLANEOUS 

 Routine paperwork. 

 Dealing with daily work orders as residents call. 

 Viewed Safety videos. 

 Went to Bay West to pick up supplies. 

 Picked up orders at Eureka Rubber Stamp. 

 

 

POLICE DEPARTMENT: 
 
Through a joint investigation, Fortuna and Ferndale Police Departments recovered the Milk Can Trophy 

taken in the burglary from Ferndale HS.  Three juveniles have confessed and will be referred to Juvenile 

Probation. 

 

Officer Lee Haldorson has been proceeding through his Field Training Program on the weekends. 

 

Officer Frank attended a POST-approved Background Investigator’s course. 

 

Chief Smith attended Kiwanis meetings/functions. 

Chief Smith attended the monthly LECAH meeting. 

Chief Smith attended the monthly Community Corrections Partnership Executive Committee. 

Officer Diaz attended the monthly LETMA meeting. 

Police Statistics – October 2011 

SERIOUS CRIMES Number Cleared 

Homicide 0   

Rape 0   

Robbery 0   

Larceny 0   

Assault 0   

Burglary 2  1 

Vehicle Theft 0  

  



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 264 

TOTAL 0 

SECONDARY CRIMES 3 

Calls for Service 55 

Reports Written 11 

  

  

Traffic Citations 26 

Other Citations 0 

Parking Citations 1 

Warnings 39 

ARRESTS 1 

AGENCY ASSISTS 13 

TRAFFIC COLLISIONS 1 

 

  



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 265 

Section 13b: Commissions, Committees and Others 

 
 

 

City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA 

Regular Design Review Minutes for the 11/10/11 8:30am meeting 

 

Vice Chairman Dane Cowan opened the meeting at 8:34. Committee members Lino Mogni, Michael 

Sweeney and Michael Bailey were present along with staff Deputy City Clerk Brianna Smith. Applicant 

Marc Daniels was also present. Chairman Dan Brown was absent.  

 

No public comment. 

 

393 Main Street-   If the configuration of the sign changes resubmitting the application is not necessary 

as long as the basic content stays the same. MOTION: Approve applicants sign. (Sweeney/Bailey). All in 

favor. 

 

No committee comments. 

 

The next regular meeting will be on November 21, 2011. The meeting was adjourned at 8:54 am.  

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

 

Brianna Smith 

Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

  



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 266 

C i t y  o f  F e r n d a l e ,  H u m b o l d t  C o u n t y ,  C a l i f o r n i a  U S A  
Minutes for Planning Commission Meeting of October 19, 2011 

 

Call to Order: Chair Jorgen Von Frausing-Borch called the Planning Commission meeting to order at 

7:00p.m.  Commissioners Dan Brown, Trevor Harper and Lino Mogni as well as staff Deputy City Clerk 

Brianna Smith and City Planner’s George Williamson and Melanie Rheaume were present. Those in 

attendance pledged allegiance to the flag.  MOTION: (Jorgen/Brown). The October 19,2011 minutes 

were unanimously approved as amended. No public comment.  

Public Hearing- Use Permit (393 Main Street):  City Planner George Williamson gave an update. 

MOTION: Adopt Resolution No. PC 2011-43 making the required findings of fact listed in Attachment A, 

and approve the Use Permit, subject to the conditions of approval listed in Attachment B, to allow for 

wood and metal workshop for handicraft manufacture and a showroom at 393 Main Street. 

(Harper/Brown). All in favor. 

Proposed Expectations Statement and Proposed Action Plan: Commissioner Harper gave an update on 

the Sign Committee and went through the expectation statement and the action plan with the Planning 

Commission. MOTION: Approve the Purposed Expectation Statement and the Purposed Action Plan. 

(Von Frausing-Borch/Brown). All in favor. 

The next regular meeting will be November 16, 2011. The meeting was adjourned at 7:22 pm. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Brianna Smith 

Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 267 

City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA 

Sign Ordinance Committee Minutes for the 11/16/11 2:30pm meeting 

 

Michael Bailey  opened the meeting at 2:36 pm. Committee Members Michael Sweeney, Karen 

Pingitore, Phil Ostler, and Trevor Harper were present along with staff City Manager Jay Parrish and 

Deputy City Clerk Brianna Smith. No public comment. 

 

October 13, 2011 Minutes: MOTION: Approve minutes from October 13, 2011 with grammar  

corrections. (Sweeney/Pingitore). All in favor. 

 

Meeting time:  MOTION: Approve 2:30 to be new meeting time. (Pingitore/Sweeney). All in favor. 

 

Expectations:  MOTION: Approve Expectations with the following changes: 

As a committee, we see our assigned task as a choice between writing a new or modifying is to review 

the exisiting sign ordinance for possible changes for the Planning Commission and send to the Planning 

Commission for approval. (Sweeney Harper). All in favor. 

 

Action Plan:  MOTION: Approve Action Plan with following changes:  

8. Legal Review-Send initial draft out for legal review and incorporate required changes.(2 weeks-1 

month) 

8  9. Final Review-Provide a draft copy of the committee’s work to the Chamber of Commerce members, 

community, building owners, and buisness owners for review and input. (2 months) 

9 10. Submit Final Draft of Sign Ordinance to the Planning Commission-Incorporate all approved 

comments from the Chamber of Commerce  community, building owners, and business owners and 

forward to final draft of the Sign Ordinance to the Planning Commission(1 meeting) 

(Sweeney/Pingitore). All in favor. 

 

Exisiting Ordinance Evalutation: Discussed were a number of problems with the exisiting Sign Ordinance 

including missing sign definitions, the coverage of “Sandwich Boards” is inadequate. Many businesses 

have them and a few use them, but there is no governing regulation as to their size, they have never 

been approved, not defined, no rules preventing the impediment of pedestrian, or vehicle traffic, nor 

how many can be used. Also discussed was the genuine desire to change the rules for computing the 

size of business signs to include the total square footage of the front of the building in some way. Small 

signs tend to get lost on the front of a large building and several business owners feel that our current is 

20 sq. ft. limit is to small. In addition our sign regulations and issues being scattered all over our 

ordinance system and they need to be consolidated into one section which would make it easier to use. 

The next regular meeting will be November 3, 2011 at 3:30pm. The meeting was adjourned at 4:30pm  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Brianna Smith, Deputy City Clerk 



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 268 

Section 13c: Council Reports and Comments 

  



December 1, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 269 

 
 

Section 14 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


